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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

TAMPA DIVISION
CASE NO.

CARMELA BALTAZAR, individually, and
as the class representative of others

similarly situated,

Plaintiff,
Vs. /3'.' (4 et' 30q1-7--I--risn
JANKI HOSPITALITY INC.,
a domestic corporation, and

MUKUND D. PATEL,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

The Plaintiff, CARMELA BALTAZAR, individually, and as class representative ofothers

similarly situated (herein after referred to as "Baltazar"), by and through her undersigned counsel,

sues JANKI HOSPITALITY INC., a Florida corporation, and MUKUND D. PATEL, individually

(collectively referred to as "Defendants") for violations of the overtime provisions of the Fair

Labor Standards Act ("FLSA") 29 USC 207 and states as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. The Plaintiff brings this action for violations of the FLSA §207 for failure to pay

overtime compensation.

2. Defendants unlawfully misclassified Plaintiff Baltazar as an exempt employee to

avoid compensating her for time worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week.
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3. Defendants failed to pay Plaintiff in accordance with the FLSA. Specifically,

Plaintiff was not paid time and a half of his regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of

forty (40) hours per week.

4. In this pleading, "Defendants", means the named Defendants, JANKI

HOSPITALITY INC., a domestic corporation, and MUKUND D. PATEL, a individually, and

other corporation, organization or entity responsible for the employment practices complained of

herein (discovery may reveal additional Defendants that should be included).

5. The allegations in this pleading are made without any admission that, as to any

particular allegation, Plaintiff bears the burden of pleading, proof, or persuasion. Plaintiff

reserves all rights to plead in the alternative.

PARTIES, JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over Plaintiff's claims pursuant to

28 USC 1331 and 1337 and 29 USC 216(b) because this action involves a federal question

under the Fair Labor Standards Act.

7. The Court has supplemental jurisdiction with respect to claims arising under state

law pursuant to 28 USC 1367.

8. Venue is proper in the District Court because Defendants operate substantial

business in Pinellas County, Florida. Furthermore, the damages complained of occurred in

Pinellas County at the Defendants' place of business is located in Clearwater, Florida.

9. Plaintiff is a resident ofPinellas County, Florida, and was employed by Defendants

as a housekeeper/ maid from approximately March of2014 until present.

10. At all times relevant to this action, Plaintiff has been an employee within the

meaning of 29 USC 203(e)(I).
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11. Defendant, MUKUND D. PATEL is a Florida resident and/or individual who

conducts business in the State of Florida. He is the sole officer of JANKI HOSPITALITY, INC.

He created and directed the pay practices and controlled and directed the work of Plaintiff.

MUKUND D. PATEL is also an officer and manager ofDefendant, JANKI HOSPITALITY, INC.,

thus making him an employer within the meaning of the FLSA. See In Re: Van Diepen, P.A.,

236 F. App'x 498, 12 Wage & Hour Cas. 2d (BNA) 1358 (11th Cir. 2007) (allowing individual

liability).

12. The FLSA defines "employer" as any "person" acting directly or indirectly in the

interests of an employer in relation to an employee. 29 USC 203(d). See also Boucher v.

Shaw, 572 Fed. 3d 1087, 1090 (9th Cir. 2009) (the definition of "employer" under the Fair Labor

Standards Act (FLSA) is not limited by the common law concept of "employer", but is to be given

an expansive interpretation in order to effectuate the FLSA's broad remedial purposes).

13. Defendant, of JANKI HOSPITALITY, INC., is a Florida Corporation with its

principal address at 11333 US Hwy. 19 N., Clearwater, FL 33764 and may be served through its

registered agent for service of process, MUKUND D. PATEL, at his stated address at11333 US

Hwy. 19 N., Clearwater, FL 33764

14. At all times material hereto, JANKI HOSPITALITY, INC. was an "enterprise

engaged in commerce" within the meaning of the FLSA.

15. At all times material hereto, JANKI HOSPITALITY, INC. was the "employer" of

Plaintiffwithin the meaning of the FLSA, 29 USC 203.

16. This action is brought under the FLSA to recover from Defendants unpaid overtime

wages, monies due and owing, liquidated damages, and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs.

17. All conditions precedent to the filing of this action have been performed.
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GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

18. Plaintiff Baltazar was employed by Defendants as a housekeeper/maid from

approximately March 2014 until present.

19. Plaintiff's job duties as a housekeeper/maid included cleaning rooms, laundry

service, light maintenance, and all other activities so directed by JANKI HOSPITALITY, INC.

and its officers and agents.

20. Plaintiff was provided with a list of rooms to clean and tasks to perform by JANKI

HOSPITALITY, INC.

21. At all times relevant, Plaintiff was supervised by JANKI HOSPITALITY, INC.,

officers, and agents and did not have the right to independent operations or decision making.

22. Plaintiff worked in excess of 40 hours per week but did not receive overtime

compensation.

23. Defendants further agreed to increase pay for Plaintiff, although failed to honor

their obligation to pay her consistently with the agreement.

24. Defendants' failure to properly pay Plaintiff was a willful violation of the FLSA.

25. Defendants have no good faith basis for failing to pay Plaintiff appropriately nor

for failing to pay the appropriate overtime.

26. Defendants, as business owners, are fully aware of the minimum hourly pay,

overtime, and classification of individuals performing work for the Defendants.

27. Plaintiff does not have the authority to hire, fire, or discipline other employees.

28. Plaintiff is a non-exempt employee whose duties dictate the same; her job duties do

not involve the use ofdiscretion in the performance of her job.

29. Plaintiff's position is subject to the FLSA wage provisions.
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30. Plaintiff often worked more than 8 hour days for 6 days a week. Plaintiff worked

overtime hours consistently throughout her employment and was not properly compensated.

31. Defendants compensated BaRam at a rate of $8.50 per hour.

32. Plaintiff was provided a mixed compensation plan by Defendants to avoid

compensating her for overtime hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per work week.

33. Plaintiff complained to Defendants regarding their unlawful pay practices.

34. After being advised by Plaintiff of the unlawful pay practices, Defendants advised

that they would alter their practice and comply with FLSA, but failed to do so repeatedly.

35. Plaintiff continues to work for Defendant under compensation terms prohibited by

the FLSA.

COUNT 1
VIOLATION OF OVERTIME PROVISIONS OF THE FLSA (4 207)

36. Plaintiff re-adopts and re-alleges the allegations set forth in Paragraph 1 through 35

as if fully set forth herein.

37. Plaintiffwas an employee ofDefendant within the meaning of29 USC 203(e)(l

38. Defendants are an employer within the meaning of 29 USC 203(d).

39. The overtime wage provisions set forth in FLSA 207 apply to Defendants, which

engaged in commerce under the definition of the FLSA.

40. During the relevant time period, Plaintiff was not paid overtime compensation for

all hours worked in excess of forty (40) per week.

41. During the relevant time period, Defendants required Plaintiff, a non-exempt

employee under the FLSA, to regularly work in excess of forty (40) hours per week without

payment ofovertime.
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42. Defendants are, or should have been, aware of FLSA's overtime calculations, its

provisions and exemptions, and know, or should have known, that withholding wages from

Plaintiff constituted a willful violation of the FLSA.

43. Therefore, Defendants willfully and intentionally engaged in a pattern and practice

of violating the overtime provisions of the FLSA by refusing to pay overtime to Plaintiff for all

hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week.

44. Defendants cannot show in good faith reliance upon any factor or law for

misclassifying Plaintiff as an independent contractor.

45. Evidence reflecting the precise number of overtime hours worked by Plaintiff is in

the possession of Defendants. If these records are unavailable, Plaintiff may establish the hours

he worked solely by his testimony and the burden of overcoming such testimony shifts to the

employer. See Anderson v. Mount Clemens Pottery Company. 328 US 680 (1946).

46. Plaintiff is entitled to time and one-half of her regular hourly rate for each hour

worked in excess of forty (40) hours per work week.

47. As a direct result of Defendants' violation of the FLSA, Plaintiff suffered damages

by being denied overtime wages in accordance with Section 207 and Section 216(b) of the FLSA,

in addition with the damages associated with the loss of his Social Security and employer

contributions to Social Security benefits.

48. Defendants have not made a good faith effort to comply with the FLSA with respect

to their compensation of Plaintiff.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, CARMELA BALTAZAR, individually, and as class

representative ofothers similarly situated, requests this Honorable Court to:
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A. Order Defendants to pay an award of damages to fully compensate Baltazar for

overtime wages and other compensation to which he is entitled:

B. Order Defendants to pay liquidated damages:

C. Order Defendants to pay pre-judgment interest on all sums due Plaintiff:

D. Order Defendants to pay compensatory damages allowable at law;

E. Order Defendants to pay an award of attorney's fees pursuant to 29 USC 216(b)

and: Lzrant such further relief as the court deems just, necessary. and proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Pursuant to Rule 38(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. Plaintiff demands a trial

by jury on all questions of fact raised by this Complaint and on all issues so triable.

WHEREFORE. the Plaintiff. CARMELA BALTAZAR. individually and as the class

representative of others similarly situated. demands juditment for damages, including punitive

damages, against the Defendants. JANK1 I IOSPITALITY. INC. and MUKUND D. PATEL,

klizether with such other and further relief as this Honorable Court deems necessary and

appropriate.

Dated this -17 of February_ 2017. TRAGOS, SARTES & TRAGOS, PLLC

/s/ Peter L. Tragm,
Peter L. Tragos. Esq.
601 Cleveland Street. Suite 800
Clearwater_ Florida 33755
Phone: (727) 441-9030
Facsimile: (727) 441-9254
Florida Bar No: 0106744

petertrnos"&greeklaw.com
linda@greeklaw.com

Page 7 of 7



Case 8:17-cv-00304-SDM-TBM Document 1-1 Filed 02/08/17 Page 1 of 1 PagelD 8

.1S.41 We,. 11151 CIVIL COVER SHEET
The JS 44 civil cover sheet Ind the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service ofpleadings or other papers as required by law, except as

provided by local rrLiLs of court This forni. appriived by the Judicial Conference of the United Stiles in September 1174 is required for the use of the Clerk ot Court for thc

purpose af initiating the civil docket sheet Invi: INMPUr VIHNS NE.1.7 17,1: WIN,0:1.PH.,,

I. (0 PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS
CARMELA BALTAZAR, individually and as the class representative of JANK1 HOSPITALITY, INC., a dornesic corporation, and MUKUND

others similarly situated D. PATEL

(10 County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff Pinellas County of Residence of First Listed Di:Send:int Pinellas

!EY( 'EPT IN PLAIN/11* CASL..) (IN MAINTIFF 157.1)

\tIFE IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES. USE THE LOCA1 ION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND tN VOLVED

(C) Attorne% s,1.1,...q Ao..... .l.i..irest, Llnid I i'l[Tin.t, .1..,0, t
i

A itoEnevs ?if

Peter L. Tragos, Esq., Tragos, Series & Tragos, PLLC Unknown

601 Cleveland Street, Suite800.
Clearwater, FL33755,

II. BASIS OF .111R1SDICTION./......„..", ...moircirairmi,. III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES ill., S. nr 04 Therior PlauJon

f i'lle i .na.r.Un auel rm.'s., ena 1.1... Rol 1., i Incalaa.

1 1 1. Croverrimern 4 3 Federal Quextion PIE DEE P IT DEF

Plaintiff of S 1 1.-erranear ..Val a Pan, I'aircl) a lIns Slate X I X I Incorporated or Pnncipal Place 0 4 N4
of liminess in This State

11 2 11S. Govmmicril 0 .1 Diversity ()linen of Another State 0 2 0 2 Incorporated and Principal Place 11 5 •10:5
Defendant Ibldh.l+h- I .ii, 2^..rnhep rq Panuer In Io.ro 111, sit IIII.NLIICSS ill Another Slatc

Cin2en Of SilbACI of a II 0 3 bk, i Op L.Att011 0 11 0 6

Enreien Country

r CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATI :TES I

ri 110 insurance PERSONM. I7, .11 ICY PERSONAL INJUM: 0 025 Drug Related S.C.17.1Lis. 11 422 Appeal 28 IS(' 138 0 475 False ['brim ACE

cr 120 Mantic 0 410 Au-pi:Inc 0 365 Pciminal Injury of Pioperty 21 L-SC 481 0 423 Willidtawill 0 370 Qui Tain (3l USC

O 130 MiHer Act 0 313 Airplane l'roduet l'Ithhin,:t 1.johihry 0 0:411 lthur 281:SC 157 3720411
O 140 Negottab/e Instninieni Liability 0 307 Health Care 3 400 State Reapportionment
O 150 Recmerv of 0% erpa:.ine nt -3 320 Assault, Libel & l'harirLiecUilCal PROPERTY KRarl.s 1 416 Antitrust

&Enforcement of Judgr sent Slarakr i'crmitial Injun. 3 520 Coraight, 0 430 Rank and Rankine

O 151 Medicare Act 3 330 Federal Ernplot as' Product 1.rahr..it..,. 1 ti-.,.;.1 Patent 0 450 Commerce

O 152 Recover.. of Defaulted Liability I 3G5 Asi,c,ros i'er., 47.113.1 0 8411 Trademaii. 0 460 Deportation
Sturdem Loans 0 3-10 MfutilIC Iniur^ Product 0 470 Racketeer Influenced and

1, 1'xcludes Vetelaris1 0 345 Marine Product 1.1.thifity I A DOR SOCIAL SE(.1.111.1.). c.m.iiii Ihvanizations
CI 153 Recovcry ativelpirontin Lirdrility PERSONAL pRol.Errn. Of 71(117an Labor Standard.; 0 861 MA11395111 0 480 Coristaner (Lrectit

ar Veteran's Benefit, CI 350 Motor Vehicle 0 370 Other Fitiod Act 0 062 Black Lune :0231 3 490 CableSat TV

0 100 Stoeldtolders' Suits 0 355 NIntor Vehicle CI 371 rnillt iii 1 ending 1 7201 :160r..Ntarlik.!,...ltisir. 0 1707 DP.V.L: 01517517 0105.ig1) I 850 SecumiesX'crinizioditiesi

1.9t1 Other Contrast Proditct Liabdity 0 380 Oilier Personal Relations 0 86-1 5511) Title XVI E-ecIlan ge

O 193 C.5ntract Prmluct 1 raliilie3 3 350 Other Persi.itta/ l'uoperty Daina.....,e 0 7111 Rarksay Labor Ai..t 0 8e5 10511405(01 7.1 890 Other Stamm*. Actions

O 1% Frasielii:c Injur. 71 385 Property Damage 71 751 larnily and Medical 0 891 Agricultural ACIS

0 352 Pinyon:1J 111.11.1.1y 1'll111Li1 1.1:1bility 1.e..ne Act 0 893 Emiroinnental Matters

Medical 1, 15, 1ttarice 0 700 Oilier Labor Unita:ism CI 805 Freedom of Information

I Hum. PROPERTY Civil. RIGIFI'S PRISON V It PETITIONS -3 701 Hriployee Retirement FEDE.RAL TAX SIIITS Act
i

ri 210 Land Condemnation 0 440 Oilier Civil Riplel:,. Hulicas Curtins: Irle01110 Seearny Act ri 870 Taxec BIS. Plaintiff r-4 grmiul fni...i;iii()11

I 22U I. oreelosurs 1 441 Voting 0 .101:Shen Dctatnee or Defendant] 0 807 Aditimistratis 0 Procedure

rl 230 Kent Lease & 1..:ecirriesii 0 4.12 Liciplo!, piens 0 510 Morio:io 0., Vacate n 1571 IRS —.Thirst PAM ACI'Res'I.els or Appeal of

O 240 Torts co Land 1 4-13 Housing Senieriee 26 1•S(- 7f.i.,5 Avenel,. Decision

ri 245 Tort Product Liabilii) AcconunrAdanorts 0 53t..(;encuil 7 930 (..4, 11,1:t1.1110111.21111V a

7 2'XJ Adl Other Real Plopertli 0 4m45 Aer. .1)isabilities 0 535 Death Pcnah) INI.LIIGRATION rate Manite,

Einployment Other: 0 .V..2 Nahirakealion A(nplicmou
0 446 Amer. v...1)isabilities CI 540 Mandamus .1.: Other 0 40 t /the: huiniaration

Other 0 550 Civil Rights Actiolli

3 448 alireatinii 0 555 Pll ISM CO11/.16011
Cl 560 (-nil Delainec

Conditions of
Cnitlinrincnt

V. ORIGIN 4.1.r....ift -.I— IN Ore MA r 1ro'L,

X I Oriainal il 7 Removed fiom 0 3 Remanded from 0 4 RennistaleC or 71 5 Transferred from 71 in Multidistrict

Proceeding State Court Appellate Coun Reopened Another DIstrtet 1.11 i .:Ition
Ispewlhl

Cite the_11.S Civil Statute under which you are filing Oh) nal cite juthdiethoral ^lafahl' artfris divereirp
29 USC 207

VI. CAUSE oF ACTION r,,,or Wi uem:nption ot puse
wage and overtime

VII. REQ[ESTED IN 0 OlK_X IF THIs 15 A CLASS ACTION IlFlIAND S 0 !ECK YES onlv if decnandcd in complaint

COAIPLAINT: 1..1NUFR RUH'. 23. 0.R.Cv P. JURY WI-NAND: X Ve!‘: ri No

V1II. RELATED CASE(S)
1.1re muTsunernv.7.

IF ANY JUDGE DOCKET NUMBFR

PAH.. SR1NA I URI:, OF .ATTOTtNF 5. 01' RECORD

02/03/2017
e„...., .....----z-:___2______

'lois oFHCE i. SE .0 i.5 L.--^
f

RECEIPT AMOUNT APPLYING 1FP JUDO'. MAG. JUDGE



ClassAction.org
This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this 
post: Lawsuit Filed Against Janki Hospitality Over Employee Misclassification

https://www.classaction.org/news/lawsuit-filed-against-janki-hospitality-over-employee-misclassification

